
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday 10 January 2023. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 18 January 2023 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Adam Stokes, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Paul Wood and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the SKDC Public-I 
Channel 
 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   Designation of Interim Monitoring Officer 
 

To provide the Committee with an opportunity to consider the designation 
of the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 
 

(Pages 13 - 16) 

6.   Pay Policy Statement 
 

It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces an 
annual pay policy statement. This statement summarises current policies 
and arrangements already in place relating to pay – as such the Pay Policy 
Statement is one of fact. The Pay Policy Statement is approved each year 
by Council as part of the budget setting and approval process. 

(Pages 17 - 31) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

7.   Employee Handbook 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an 
update on the Council’s Employee Handbook and next steps of the 
handbook review. This includes the review and re-design of the Council’s 
Flexible Working Policy.  
 

(Pages 33 - 43) 

8.   Pulse Surveys - Wellbeing and Staff Socials 
 

This report details the results of two recent pulse surveys. The first set out 
questions relating to colleague’s wellbeing and the second survey asked 
about staff socials.  
 

(Pages 45 - 61) 

9.   Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

(Pages 63 - 64) 

10.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Employment Committee 
 

Wednesday, 16 November 2022, 10.00 am 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 
 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Judy Stevens 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

Officers in attendance  
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 
Sam Fitt (Corporate Project Officer) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 

 

 

 
22. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Kelham Cooke. 
 
Councillor Judy Stevens substituted for Councillor Kelham Cooke and Councillor 
Gloria Johnson substituted for Councillor Adam Stokes. 

 
23. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
24. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 

 
A Member referred to page 7 of the minutes and asked what progress had been 
made with the Corporate Values Workshops and if they were to be held in public. 
 
The HR Manager confirmed that all Members had received an invite and those who 
were unable to attend in person would be able to take part in an online session in 
the near future.  There were no plans for the workshops to be held in public at this 
stage. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 were proposed, seconded, 
and AGREED as a correct record. 

 
25. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
There were none. 

 
26. New Office Accommodation Update 

 
The report was presented to the Committee by the Deputy Chief Executive who 
confirmed that the progress was on course. 
 
Approval was given at the Annual Full Council meeting held on 26 May 2022 to 
vacate the existing offices at St Peter’s Hill, Grantham and relocate to the empty 
office unit above the Savoy Cinema on St Catherine’s Road.  A budget allocation of 
up to £500k funded from the Invest to Save Reserve was approved by Council to be 
used for the relocation and works to be carried out for the upstairs area.   
 
Design works and specification of the fitting out of the space has been moving 
forward, including consultation with all relevant stakeholders and the People’s 
Panel.  The design and floor layout for the upper floor previously agreed was 
starting to take shape, and works have now begun on the space.  The works have 
been led by the Lindum Construction Group via the Scape Framework to adhere to 
the Councils financial and procurement regulations and was approved by Cabinet. 
This was expected to be completed prior to Christmas, and then members of the 
facilities and IT team were to begin transferring furniture and IT equipment. It was 
hoped this will allow staff to work from the new office in January 2023.  The office 
space would enable staff to hot-desk and work in the same area, further building a 
culture of team SK. 
 
It was also approved at Cabinet that the temporary relocation of the Customer 
Services provision to the Guildhall Arts Centre could take place, so that there was 
no disruption to customers, whilst the move was underway.  Plans for this were 
underway and the move was to take place towards the end of November 2022.   
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• Was the St Catherine’s Road office to include customer-facing services? 
 

• What capacity was the office space able to accommodate? 
 

• Would Members be shown around when complete? 
 

• Timely progress of the move was welcomed. 
 

• Over £1 million has been spent in the last 4 years developing the public realm 
area near the cinema, what was happening with the old offices? 

4



 
 

 

• Was the Council required to pay back the £1.3 million that was given by the 
Local Enterprise Partnership for a University Centre that hasn’t gone ahead 
and how did that affect the budget? 

 

• Ground Floor accommodation that was to be open to the public was 
welcomed 

 

• Was there sufficient space for public partners? 
 

The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that the eventual plan was to move 
Customer Services into the new office space, along with public sector partners.  
Imminently, Customer Services was to temporarily move to an office in the Guildhall 
recently vacated by Citizens Advice.  The Officer continued that full capacity was to 
include 90 desks.  Considering that staff work within the office 2 days in a week, 
this was likely to be more than necessary. Although not currently safe, Members 
would be welcome to be shown around the office space once building works had 
been completed. 
 
The Chairman clarified that the report to be noted within the meeting was 
particularly in reference to the new accommodation and not the office being 
vacated. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed the Committee that the old office was being 
marketed and that there had been interest.  The Officer confirmed that there were 
still ongoing negotiations over the ground floor facilities.  The Council would have to 
pay back monies owed, regardless of the decision by Lincoln University to cancel 
their arrangement and this was no within the control of the Council, unfortunately.  It 
was understood that over the period of the pandemic, educational needs had 
changed, particularly with the use of online learning.  While space would be 
reduced, it was considered adequate as the demand for face-to-face service had 
significantly reduced. 
 
A Member asked for clarification on how there was to be an opportunity to 
scrutinise the decisions discussed as part of the agenda. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that Employment was not a scrutiny committee and the 
Finance, Economic Development, Corporate and Overview Committee would be 
the most relevant to consider such decisions. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Employment Committee noted the progress on the new office 

accommodation. 
 

27. SKDC Intranet 
 

5



 
 

The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities introduced a report on the 
Council’s intranet. 

 
The intranet was reviewed in October 2021 with a purpose of updating content, 
rebranding the site and updating the directory. 
 
Whilst a review of the intranet has taken place and a number of changes and 
updates were made, the platform currently being used very much limited the 
potential of a staff intranet.  There were several limitations of the current intranet 
platform which made it difficult to do a more substantial and significant update. The 
current intranet was old and did not have high usage.    
 
All departments with content on the intranet were asked to review it and remove or 
replace information where required including updates to the customer services 
pages including the contacts, the home page links and the health and safety advice. 
More recent updates had included adding the desk booking guidance and app to 
support the new ways of working.  All the ‘Monty’ branding was removed (previous 
name for the intranet) and the site was rebranded with the corporate logos and 
colour scheme.  
 
Plans were being put in place to refresh the council’s website and initial scoping is 
to take place to understand cost implications of also doing this for the intranet.  
User needs and possible solutions were to be explored with the People Panel 
including potential options for a more interactive intranet and refresh of the design. 
 
The following questions were asked during discussion: 

 

• Was there a target date for the new intranet to be introduced? 
 

• A good intranet was considered to be very important, especially as staff were 
frequently working from home. 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities informed Members that 
there was no start date yet as cost implications were being considered.  The 
website for residents was considered to be a priority. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Employment Committee noted the update on South Kesteven’s 

intranet site.  
 

28. Employee Rewards and Recognition Update 
 

The Employment Committee requested an annual report to update on the employee 
recognition in place and any new initiatives.  This was introduced by the Cabinet 
Member for People and Safer Communities who informed the Committee that at 
South Kesteven, it was important to ensure all employees felt valued, inspired and 
proud of their contributions and to create a great company culture by focusing on 

6



 
 

positively rewarding the right behaviours and celebrating the positive things 
happening more.  

 
South Kesteven District Council’s recognition strategy had been reviewed with 
feedback sought from the People Panel and colleagues.  Examples included: 
 
#TeamSK Thank You - Peer to peer nominations to say ‘thank you’ to a colleague 
and give a reason why. This was introduced in August and the first month attracted 
more than 50 nominations, followed by 47 in September. A draw was made of all 
the nominees and the winners received an additional day’s annual leave. 
 
Revised long service awards - These were previously awarded when colleagues 
leave SKDC. The new process means colleagues are rewarded when the 
anniversary takes place making long service recognition more meaningful and 
timely. Amounts given were also reviewed and benchmarked. 
 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities informed the Committee 
that thankyou cards had been made for the purpose of sending to staff and invited 
Members to take some if they wished.  The cards were supplied by the HR Team if 
requested. 
 
An Employee Awards Ceremony was planned for 1 December to recognise 
contributions and great achievements throughout the year and had received a lot of 
very positive feedback. 
 
The Chairman stated that the Committee was extremely grateful for the hard work 
and resilience of the staff, particularly during challenging times. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• Were staff removed from the draw once they had won a day’s annual leave, to 
prevent staff winning multiple times? 

 

• It was recognised that a ‘thank you’ increased motivation and productivity 
amongst staff.  It was hoped that the system was maintained and that 
nominations didn’t reduce over time due to complacency. 

 

• Some Members weren’t previously aware of the thank you cards.  How was 
this idea going to be communicated to all Members along with how to ensure 
staff receive their cards?  There used to be a monthly online magazine called 
‘Evolve’ that briefed Councillors. 

 

• A Member welcomed the recent Planning Tour of Grantham as a great way of 
communicating to Members what part they were playing and how their 
decisions had a positive effect within the area of South Kesteven. 

 

• Internal communications had to be largely positive but balanced also. 
 

7



 
 

• It was important to be mindful that front-facing staff are more likely to be 
recognised.  All staff need to be remembered.  
 

The HR Manager confirmed that staff could only win the ‘thank you’ draw once a 
year and names were removed once a staff member had won the day’s leave.  
Nominations were shared with staff so they could see who had been nominated.  
 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities informed Members that it 
was not known why the monthly online magazine was stopped.  Currently, there 
was a Members briefing emailed but this offered no confirmation of who was able to 
read it.  It was considered that perhaps the HR Team could carry out a survey 
amongst Members to confirm what communication needs there were. 
 
ACTION 1: 
 
That all Members were to be surveyed for their input on communication 
needs. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Employment Committee noted the update on South Kesteven’s 

recognition strategy.  
 

29. HR People Plan and Dashboard 
 

The Employment Committee requested that a comprehensive HR dashboard be 
provided every six months to Committee.  This report was introduced by the 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities. 
 
The dashboard, provided and update on staff numbers and covered the following 
themes:  
 
• Establishment  
• Starters and leavers  
• Absence  
• Equality and diversity  
• Employee relations case data  
• Learning and development 
 
The HR Manager continued with an overview of the report metrics.  There were 
currently 534 employees – down 34 in the first two quarters of the year, in line with 
restructuring activities.  There was an even gender mix and 20% of the team were 
part-time.  Approximately half of the workforce were aged over 50 and discussions 
had taken place around potentially losing a lot of experience within a short time 
period.  Almost half the workforce had been employed at the Council for 5 years or 
less.  The end of the Pandemic saw a larger increase in leavers, seen on a national 
level as ‘the Great Resignation’ but levels were current down to a more expected 

8



 
 

rate.  Exit interviews were now routinely carried out with leavers as the feedback 
was considered very important. 

 
Data for absences showed an average of 6.65 days per year were lost, with mental 
health increasingly emerging as one of the reasons given.  A lot of focus was now 
given to well-being and employee assistance.  There were 60 approaches to trained 
mental health first-aiders and 42 calls to the employee assistance scheme.  A 
return-to-work interview was given in 97% of cases where staff came back to work 
after sickness leave. 
 
Only partial information had been given on equality and diversity data as some staff 
had chosen not to confirm this information and HR were to focus on obtaining as 
much information as possible within this area whilst respecting the right to privacy 
of all staff. 
 
In learning and development, 305 training places were confirmed within the first two 
quarters of the year providing learning opportunities and the number of apprentices 
had increased by 3.  Apprenticeships were a huge part of South Kesteven and 
there were opportunities for these apprentices to experience several different 
services within the organisation. 
 
During discussion, the following points were raised by Members: 

 

• What proportion of the mental health sickness recorded was due to work-
related issues or cost-of-living issues? 

 

• It was acknowledged that when people are suffering with mental illness they 
were not always able to give a reason and it could be perceived as intrusive to 
ask. 

 

• It was considered that the proportion of unanswered information relating to 
equality and diversity was not necessarily a negative point.  It could be that 
staff were comfortable to exercise their right to privacy. 

 

• Was there sufficient support for new parents returning to work? 
 

• Were the Personal Development Reviews seen as a positive experience by 
staff? 

 

• A Member highlighted an error in the ethnicity bar chart (page 43) where the 
fist category should have read ‘white british’. 

 
The HR Manager informed the Committee that approximately half of the staff that 
were experiencing long-term sickness confirmed that work-related stress 
contributed to their absence.  It was not confirmed that there were any cases where 
the financial crisis was a contributing factor. 
 

9



 
 

The Officer continued that a parents support group had been set up earlier in the 
year and had received positive feedback so far.  An induction had been included as 
part of the process to help staff settle back into work after a long absence at what 
was considered a challenging time in life and it was really important for the 
organisation to provide support. 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities passed on her thanks to 
the HR Team, acknowledging that there were many ways in which the organisation 
were providing support for staff.  It was also confirmed that the categories on the 
ethnicity bar chart were to be corrected. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Committee noted the information provided in the dashboard for 

the first 6 months of the 2022/23 financial year. 
 

30. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022 – 2023. 
 

31. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 
A Member acknowledged that while a briefing was received regularly, due to news 
being accessible 24 hours a day, they frequently found out information through its 
appearance in the press.  It was asked where Members should go to stay informed. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive acknowledged that this was recognised as happening 
and the Council was working towards a process that prevented this.  

 
32. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:00. 

 
 

10



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 19 November 2022 meeting of the Employment Committee.  

Minute 
no. 

Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Response/Status 

28 Employee 
Rewards & 
Recognition 
Update 

Members communications to be 
reviewed 

Communications 
Team 

HR will report back to Employment Committee 
when applicable. 

 

 

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee  
 
 

18 January 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Linda Wootten, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing  

 

 

Designation of Interim Monitoring Officer 
 

Report Author 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

  Karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide the Committee with an opportunity to consider the designation of the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That Council designates Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 
and Deputy Monitoring Officer, as South Kesteven District Council’s 
Monitoring Officer from 26 January 2023 until further notice on an interim 
basis. 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 A £5,000 per annum honorarium is paid to the Monitoring Officer and a £2,500 per 

annum honorarium is paid to the Deputy Monitoring Officer as special 

responsibility payments attributed to Statutory Officers and their deputies, as set 

out in the Council’s Pay Policy Statement. 

 

1.2 The current Deputy Monitoring Officer is already in receipt of the £2,500 per 

annum honorarium which would increase to £5,000 upon his designation as 

Monitoring Officer. A new Deputy Monitoring Officer would require appointing 

which then attracts an additional £2,500 per annum honorarium. Consequently, 

this interim arrangement would incur an overall additional cost of £5,000 per 

annum. 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.3 Legal and governance implications are set out in the body of the report. 

 

Completed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive   

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  Section 5 (1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the Council 

to designate an officer as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer 

may not be the Council’s Chief Finance (Section 151) Officer nor the Head of Paid 

Service (Chief Executive). 

 

2.2 The Monitoring Officer has statutory duties and responsibilities relating to the 

Council’s constitution and its arrangements for effective governance. These duties 

include:  

 

- Maintenance of the Constitution 

- To ensure the lawfulness of decision making 

- Responsibility for matters relating to Councillor Conduct  

- The registration of Members’ interests 

14



 

2.3 The Council’s Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Chief Executive, is currently on long 

term sick leave.  

 

2.4 Given the statutory nature of the position, it is considered appropriate to designate 

an Interim Monitoring Officer in the Deputy Chief Executive’s absence. 

 

2.5 The terms of reference for the Employment Committee provides for the 

Employment Committee to make a recommendation to the Council on the 

selection of a Monitoring Officer.  

 

2.6 Full Council will consider the Committee’s recommendation and the designation to 

the role of Monitoring Officer on 26 January 2023. 

 

2.7 The above duties and responsibilities have been carried out by Graham Watts, 

Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer, in the interim, 

with this being the earliest opportunity for the Employment Committee, and 

subsequently Full Council, to recommend and designate one of the Council’s 

officers as Monitoring Officer with full powers. 

 

2.8 It is recommended that Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer, be designated as the Council’s Monitoring Officer on an 

interim basis until further notice. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer, 

has 23 years’ experience in local government governance and has acted as the 

Council’s Deputy Monitoring Officer since his employment with the Council in May 

2021. His previous authorities include East Lindsey District Council, Boston 

Borough Council, the City of Lincoln Council, Lincolnshire County Council and 

South Cambridgeshire District Council where he played a key role in providing 

constitutional and legislative advice relating to Council meeting procedures and 

decision-making, as well as providing advice in respect of the Councillor Code of 

Conduct and registration and declaration of interests by Councillors. He was 

previously Deputy Monitoring Officer at South Cambridgeshire District Council and 

provided specific constitutional support relating to Council meeting procedure 

rules and the Councillor Code of Conduct to the Monitoring Officer at the City of 

Lincoln Council.  

 

3.2 In his time as Deputy Monitoring Officer for South Kesteven District Council, Mr 

Watts has played a fundamental part in the comprehensive review of the Council’s 

Constitution and consistently provides clear and sound constitutional and 

procedural advice to Councillors and Officers, whether directly or at the Council’s 

public meetings. He assisted in the implementation of the Council’s new Councillor 

Code of Conduct and associated training for Councillors, has led assessments 

15



and investigations into alleged breaches of the Councillor Code of Conduct and 

also line-manages the Council’s Legal Services Team. 

 

3.3 Taking the above into account, Graham Watts has demonstrated he has the 

required knowledge and experience to undertake the role for South Kesteven 

District Council. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Option 1 – That Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer, be recommended for designation as the Council’s Monitoring 

Officer on an interim basis, until further notice. 

 

4.2 Option 2 – That another officer of the Council be recommended designation as the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 

4.3 Option 3 – That Legal Services Lincolnshire be commissioned to provide this 

service for South Kesteven District Council. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To ensure that the Council is compliant with the requirements of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 to designate an officer as the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The Employment Committee is required to consider making a recommendation to 

Council on the designation of the Council’s Monitoring Officer.  

 

 

 

 

16



 
 

       

Committee/Council 
 
 

Date 18 January 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 

 

 

Pay Policy Statement 
 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

  Jane.Jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces an annual pay 

policy statement. This statement summarises current policies and arrangements already 

in place relating to pay – as such the Pay Policy Statement is one of fact. The Pay Policy 

Statement is approved each year by Council as part of the budget setting and approval 

process. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Recommends that the Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 be submitted to Full 
Council for approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The financial considerations of the Pay Policy Statement are incorporated into the 

budget setting proposals for 2023/24 and these proposals will be presented to 

Council for approval on 1 March 2023.  Employee costs are the largest financial 

element of the budget and it is important that salary budgets and staffing resourcing 

requirements are kept under regular review.   

Richard Wyles Chief Financial Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Article 13.4.4(vi) of the Council’s Constitution, which sets out the remit of the 

Employment Committee states one of its functions is the review of the annual Pay 

Policy and recommending it to Council for approval in order that it can be 

published. The Council is required to produce and publish a pay policy statement 

for each financial year under Sections 38-39 of the Localism Act 2011. The 

Council must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 

Section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

18



2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement is reviewed annually to ensure that it 

accurately reflects the Council’s position and is aligned with the outcomes and 

objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan. The 2022/23 pay policy statement was 

presented to Full Council on 3 March 2022.  

2.2 A review of the Pay Policy Statement has been carried out to ensure compliance 

with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.   

2.3 The key changes include the updating of the posts in scope under the definition of 

officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement (paragraph 3).   

2.4 The Pay Policy Statement refers to the collective agreement that the Council has 

in place for local cost of living pay awards and the fact that we determine these 

pay awards locally for all staff, based on this agreement. 

2.5 The Pay Policy Statement details the Council’s decision to adopt the Real Living 

Wage in March 2021 and sets out the pay increase arrangements for our lowest 

grade and a number of other lower grades which are impacted by the Real Living 

Wage increase.  It also sets out that these pay increases are an alternative to the 

annual cost of living pay award and not in addition to.  

2.6 The Pay Policy Statement makes reference under paragraph 7.11 to a review of 

pay and reward arrangements that is taking place.    This review is ongoing and 

focuses on the following key areas: 

• The use of career grades to attract talent to the organisation and provide 

development opportunities and progression to develop and retain rising stars.   

• A review of the lower range of pay grades to ensure that there is clear 

differentiation between the grades, based on the 2022 Real Living Wage rate. 

• Analysis of similar roles across the organisation to identify any inconsistencies 

between pay grades 

• Develop a consistent process for the benchmarking of roles, particularly those 

which are hard to recruit to. 

2.7 The purpose of the review is to ensure that our approach to pay and reward 

supports the objectives of the People Strategy to ensure that we can deliver “a 

flexible, innovative organisation” that has the “skills, resilience and motivation to 

deliver and achieve the Council’s objectives”. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 It is a legal requirement that the Council publishes an annual Pay Policy 

Statement and no other options have been considered. 

 

 

 

19



4. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

4.1 The reason for the recommendation is to satisfy a legislative requirement. 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

5.1 Pay Policy Statement 2021-22:  

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0 

Employee Handbook Secondment Factsheet 

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24541&p=0 

  

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix A – Draft Pay Policy Statement 2023-2024 

 

  

 

 

 

20

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24541&p=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAY POLICY  
STATEMENT 

 
2023/24 

 

PAY POLICY 

STATEMENT  

2023 / 2024  

 

 

 

 

21



 

 

 

 
1. INTRODUCTION AND POLICY STATEMENT     

     

1.1 South Kesteven District Council aims to ensure that its remuneration 
packages are fair, equitable and transparent, leading to the employment 
of professional staff who have appropriate skills and experience to 
provide high quality services to its residents and visitors.   

 

1.2 South Kesteven District Council recognises that remuneration at all levels 

needs to enable the Council to attract and retain high quality employees 

dedicated to the service of the public.     

1.3 Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions 
as the authority thinks fit”.  This Pay Policy Statement (the 
‘statement’) sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011.  

1.4 It is important that local authorities are able to determine their own pay 
structures in order to address their strategic aims and to compete in the 

local and national market.  

1.5 Once approved by the full Council, this policy statement will come into 
immediate effect, superseding the 2022/2023 Pay Policy Statement, and 

will be subject to review in accordance with the relevant legislation 
prevailing at that time, currently annually.  

1.6 The Council may amend the pay policy statement at any point in the 
year.     

 

2. LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK   

 

2.1 In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the 
Council will comply with all relevant employment legislation.  This includes 
the Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less 
Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, The Agency Workers 
Regulations 2010, and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006.     

 

2.2  With regard to the equal pay requirements contained within the Equality 
Act, the Council ensures there is no pay discrimination in its pay 
structures and that all pay differentials are objectively justified through 

the use of a job evaluation mechanism, which directly relates salaries to 
the requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role.   

     

     

 3.    SCOPE    

     

3.1.  This Pay Policy Statement includes a policy on:     

     

22



 

 

 

• The level and elements of remuneration for the Chief Executive       

• The remuneration of the lowest paid employee 

• The relationship between the remuneration of Chief Officers1 and other 
officers 

• Other specific aspects of Chief Officer remuneration such as 
fees, charges and other discretionary payments.     

     

     

3.2.  Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay 
but also charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in 

enhancements of pension entitlements and termination payments.     

     

  3.3  The definition of officers covered by this policy are detailed in Appendix A 
to the Pay Policy Statement.  For South Kesteven District Council the 
following posts are covered:     

    Head of the Paid Service, which in this authority is the post of Chief 
Executive     

     

Statutory Chief Officers, which in this authority are the posts of:     

     Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)    

 Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)     

 

   Non-statutory Chief Officers (those who report directly to the Head of the 
Paid Service) which in this authority are the posts of:     

     Director - Growth and Culture     

 Director – Housing and Property    

  

Deputy Chief Officers, (those who report directly to a non-

statutory or statutory Chief Officer) which in this authority are 

the posts of:     

 Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection    
 Assistant Director – Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
 Assistant Director of Planning       

 Assistant Director of Housing    

 Assistant Director – Finance (Deputy Section 151 Officer) 

 Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure    

 Head of Revenues & Benefits      

 Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance  

 Head of Economic Development 

 HR Manager    

 Communications Manager   

 Procurement Lead  

 Community Engagement Manager 

  

 
The details shown above are based on the new management structure which was 

implemented in 2022 by the Council.     

23



 

 

 

    

3.4  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils to publish 

the number of employees who are paid over £50,000 by job title 

using salary bands.  Historically at   South Kesteven District Council 

these bands are published in the pay policy statement using a 

minimum range bracket of £5000, this is based on the Local   

Government Transparency Code 2015.    

    

3.5  Pay details for posts graded Service Manager or above are shown in 
Table 1. These will also be published on the Council’s website.       

     

   Table 1 
 

Job Title  

  

FTE  Salary Band  

Chief Executive  1.0  £135,000 - £140,000  

Deputy Chief Executive 1.0 £95,000 - £105,000 

Chief Finance Officer  1.0 £95,000 - £105,000 

Directors  2.0  £95,000 - £105,000  

Assistant Directors  6.0  £70,000 - £80,000  

Heads of Service  5.0 £60,000 - £70,000  

Service Manager 8.0 £45,000 - £60,000 

 

4.    CHIEF EXECUTIVE PAY     

     

4.1.  The Chief Executive in South Kesteven discharges the accountability of 

Head of Paid Service – a statutory role defined by the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989.   The Council determines the level 

of pay for its Chief Executive through the Employment Committee. The 

committee and its remit are contained in the Council’s constitution.     

     

4.2.  The Chief Executive of South Kesteven District Council has been 

appointed as Returning Officer. The Returning Officer is an officer of 

the Council who is appointed under the Representation of the People 

Act 1983.  Whilst appointed by the Council, the role of Returning 

Officer is one which involves and incurs personal responsibility and 

accountability and is statutorily separate from his/her duties as an 

employee of the Council.      

     

4.3.  Special fees are paid for Returning Officer duties which are not 

part of the post holder’s substantive role. These fees are payable 

as required and can be made to any senior officer appointed to 

fulfil the statutory duties of this role.      

24



 

 

 

     

5.    CHIEF OFFICER PAY DETERMINATION     

     

5.1. The Localism Act refers to Chief Officers. The Chief Officers at South 
Kesteven District Council are the following:      

    

• The Chief Executive who is Head of Paid Service, the Section151 Officer,     
and the Monitoring Officer (the “Statutory Officers”),    

• Deputy Chief Executive    

• Directors    

   

5.2  The Council does not have a separate pay policy in relation to Chief 
Officers.     

     

5.3   The total remuneration package defined in employment contracts for the 
Chief Executive and Chief Officers is the same as all staff. It includes a 
spot rate salary or salary band, the same holiday entitlement based on 
length of service, the same sick pay arrangements, the same pension 
scheme arrangements and no enhanced remuneration elements are 

included.     

     

5.4   The Council publishes senior management salary rates and gender pay 
details on its website in line with the requirements of the Government’s 
transparency agenda.     

         

6.    LOWEST PAID EMPLOYEES     

     

6.1.  The lowest paid staff within the Council’s pay structure are on Grade 1.  

For this reason, we have chosen staff employed on Grade 1 as our 

definition of the ‘lowest paid’ for the purposes of this policy.  Grade 1 for 

2022/2023 is £20,256 per annum.     

     

6.2.  The terms and conditions of employment for Grade 1 staff are in 

accordance with collective agreements, negotiated from time to time, by 

the National Joint Council for Local Government Services, as set out in the 

Scheme of Conditions of Service (commonly known as Green Book).  

These are supplemented by local collective agreements reached with the 

trade union recognised by the council and by the rules of the council.      

     
 

25



 

 

 

7.    PAY DETERMINATION ARRANGEMENTS     

     

     

7.1.  The Council employs all staff on local terms and conditions. It has a 

collective agreement in place for local cost of living pay awards that is 

based upon pay reviews by the National Joint Council and Local 

Government Services (NJC).     

     

7.2.  The Council makes its own determination of cost of living pay awards for 

all staff in accordance with this local agreement, taking account of the rate 

of inflation (current and Bank of England forecast), labour market 

conditions, the level of previous years’ cost of living awards and any 

specific budgetary constraints.     

     

7.3.  Where salary bands are used, appointment within these will be based on 
an assessment against the levels of competency required for the role.     

     

7.4.  The salary for newly appointed staff is determined on appointment in 

relation to the job evaluation score for the post. The job evaluation score 

assumes full competence at the job. Where a new appointee for the job 

has some development needs, the Council may choose to place the 

employee on a salary progression until full competence has been 

confirmed or qualifications have been completed.     

     

7.5   In April 2021 the Council adopted the Real Living Wage to ensure that we 

pay a wage rate based on what people need to live.  It is calculated based 

on rising living costs.   

 

7.6  The Real Living Wage for 2022 was £9.90 per hour.  It is reviewed in 
November each year and for 2023 the Real Living Wage is £10.90 per 

hour.  There is an expectation the Real Living Wage increase will be 
implemented by May 2023.   

 

7.7  From 1 April 2022 Grade SK1 was increased to £9.90 per hour.  A review 

of Grades SK2 to SK8 was also carried out and these were increased in line 

with the Real Living Wage increase to ensure that there is sufficient 

differentiation between the grades.     

 

7.8  Pay grades which receive the Real Living Wage increase may not also 
receive the annual cost of living pay award agreed by the Council, but they 

will receive the difference in the two amounts if the cost of living payment 
is higher.  

     

7.9  The Council’s current pay and reward arrangements have been designed to 
ensure consistency through the job evaluation process and with reference 
to the external market.    

 

7.10  A review of pay and reward is ongoing to ensure that pay and reward 

26



 

 

 

arrangements enable us to attract and retain the right people and support 

the Council to be able to deliver the corporate strategy and focus on 

growth, agility and competitiveness.      

  

7.11  The Council will monitor pay locally and nationally as required and will 

undertake market reviews in relation to specific posts. Where a post is 

hard to recruit to at any level, particularly where there are supply 

pressures, the Council has a process in place to consider applying market 

supplements, or to offer recruitment incentives.  Market supplements will 

be reviewed annually and may be withdrawn if market conditions change.     

     

7.12 Local government elections and neighbourhood planning referendums are 
a separate statutory responsibility and rates of pay for local elections are 
set in accordance with a Lincolnshire Countywide election scale of fees and 

charges.  These rates differ according to the size of the ward contested.     

     

8.    ALLOWANCES     

     

8.1 The Council will pay job related allowances to staff where it is a 
requirement of the job to do so. Staff who are required to respond to 

emergencies outside normal working hours are also currently in receipt of 
standby and call out arrangements, depending on the nature of the work.     

     

8.2  Overtime is payable at flat rate and can only be done with the prior 
approval of the line manager. Chief Officers and managers are required to 

work evenings and weekends to meet the requirements of the job and will 
not attract overtime.   

     

8.3   The Council does not pay essential car allowances or provide cars to any 

individual member of staff as the Council operates a pool car system 

available to all employees.  Where the Chief Executive, Chief Officers or 

staff use their own cars for Council business they are reimbursed at a flat 

rate of 45p per mile in line with the HMRC guidelines. This practice will be 

reviewed as part of the overall review of pay and reward.     

     

8.4   Honoraria and acting up payments may be paid for those staff who have 

taken up additional responsibilities for a defined period of time to cover 

absence, or additional duties. Where possible such payments will be based 

on the job evaluated rates of pay for those responsibilities. Each case will 

be considered on its own merits and a fair recompense will be calculated. 

     

8.5 Temporary short-term appointments of staff will be paid in line with the 
job evaluated rate for the job and the prevailing market rate for such 
short-term appointments.     

     

8.6 Remuneration for staff on secondment will be in line with the Council’s 
Secondment Policy  

     

27



 

 

 

9.  APPRENTICES     

     

9.1 The Council actively supports the employment of apprentices. The salary 
paid to all newly recruited apprentices is based on the National Living 
Wage (for those aged 23 and over) or the National Minimum Wage (for 
those up to the age of 22) and is increased in line with Government 
recommendations.      

     

9.2 Current National Minimum Wage/National Living Wage rates for employees 
are as follows:     

     

April 2022 23+ 21-22  18-20  Under 18  

 £9.50 £9.18  £6.83  £4.82  

April 2023 23+ 21-22 18-20 Under 18 

 £10.42 £10.18 £7.49 £5.28 

 

 

National Minimum Wage and National Living Wage rates are reviewed 

annually by the Government and any increases take effect from 1st April 

each year.      

 

9.3 In accordance with the Apprentice Levy any existing employees can be 
signed up to an appropriate apprenticeship in line with identified 
professional development needs.  These employees receive the job 

evaluated salary for the post that they are employed in.     

    

  10.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME     

     

10.1  All staff who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme make 
individual contributions to the scheme depending on their salary.   

Contribution rates for 2021- 2022 range from 5.5% to 12.5%.      

     

10.2  The Council makes employer’s contributions into the scheme, which are 
reviewed by the actuary. The current employer contribution rate is 23.9%.        

     

11. PAY MULTIPLIERS     

     

11.1  Whilst job evaluation and the market determine the relationship between 

the highest and lowest paid employees, an analysis of pay multiples has 

been undertaken in the light of the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.     

     

11.2  The Council defines its lowest paid employees in relation to their grade. 

This definition has been selected to enable fair comparison on a Full Time 

Equivalent basis.     

     

11.3  The Ratio of the highest paid employee to mean salary per Full Time 
Equivalent (FTE) is 1 : 4.8 (based on actual salary paid).     

     

28



 

 

 

11.4  The Council has no policy about the maximum or minimum levels of such 
ratio statistics.     

     

12. TERMINATION PAYMENTS     

     

12.1   The Council recognises that staff leave the Council for a range of reasons 
including: retirement, redundancy, career move, moving location, 
voluntary resignation, or employment termination. Where a termination 
payment may apply, each case will be treated on its own merit and will 

comply with Council policies and the law.     

     

12.2  The Council reserves the right to make any appropriate payments to 
protect the reputation of the Council and manage risk of litigation. This will 
be in line with legislation and with reference to best value.     

     

12.3  The Council does not have any specific termination payments built into any 

employee’s employment contract. It reserves the right to do so should 

such a need arise in the interests of the efficiency of the service.     

     

12.4  The Council has a redundancy policy in place in accordance with current 
legislation which applies equally to all staff. Where redundancy payments 
are made to any employee the Council reserves the right to recover the 

redundancy severance payment.      

 

12.5 Termination payments should be kept to a minimum and it must be 

demonstrated that they are in the best interests of the Council. The 

purpose of this would be to ensure a clear process and to demonstrate 

that the Council always works to ensure residents receive the best value 

for money.   

 

 

13.  RE-ENGAGEMENT OF EMPLOYEES     

     

13.1  Employees who are offered another post with any organisation covered by 

the Modification Order Act prior to their redundancy leaving date and 

commence within 4 weeks of leaving, are not eligible to receive a 

redundancy payment.     

     

13.2  Employees who have been made redundant are eligible to apply for 
vacancies which may arise after they have left the Council’s employment.  
Any such applications will be considered together with those from other 
candidates and the best person appointed to the post.  Any necessary 
adjustment to pension would be made in accordance with the scheme 

regulations.       

     

 

 14.    GENDER PAY GAP REPORTING     

     

14.1  The Government introduced a requirement for mandatory gender pay gap 

29



 

 

 

reporting for public sector employers with 250 or more employees.   The 
deadline for publishing the data is 31 March each year.   The Council 

publishes its annual data in accordance with the regulations and reports to 
Employment Committee with supporting commentary and any action 
points arising.   

     

  

30



 

 

 

Definitions of Chief Officers              Appendix A  

Localism Act 2011  

43  Interpretation  

(2)   In this Chapter “chief officer”, in relation to a relevant authority, means 
each of the following-  

(a) the head of its paid service designated under section 4(1) of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989;  

(b) its monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) of that Act;  

(c) a statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act;  

(d) a non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act;  

(e) a deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act.   

 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 – Section 2  

6) In this section “the statutory chief officers” relevant to South Kesteven 
District Council means—  

 

(a) the officer having responsibility, for the purposes of section 151 of the Local  

Government Act 1972, section 73 of the Local Government Act 1985, section 112 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988[, section 127(2) of the Greater 

London Authority Act 1999] or section 6 below or for the purposes of section 95 
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, for the administration of the 

authority's financial affairs.  

 

(7) In this section “non-statutory chief officer” means, subject to the following 
provisions of this section—  

 

(a) a person for whom the head of the authority's paid service is directly 
responsible;  

(b) a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his post, is required to 
report directly or is directly accountable to the head of the authority's paid 

service; and  

(c) any person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his post, is required 
to report directly or is directly accountable to the local authority themselves 

or any committee or sub-committee of the authority.  
 

(8) In this section “deputy chief officer” means, subject to the following 

provisions of this section, a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of 

his post, is required to report directly or is directly accountable to one or more of 

the statutory or non-statutory chief officers.  

(9) A person whose duties are solely secretarial or clerical or are otherwise in 

the nature of support services shall not be regarded as a non-statutory chief 

officer or a deputy chief officer for the purposes of this Part.  

31

http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.29111436816547376&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251985_51a%25sect%2573%25section%2573%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.29111436816547376&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251985_51a%25sect%2573%25section%2573%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.5682975251100181&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251988_41a%25sect%25112%25section%25112%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.5682975251100181&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251988_41a%25sect%25112%25section%25112%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.5682975251100181&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251988_41a%25sect%25112%25section%25112%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.25992970953511496&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251999_29a%25sect%25127%25section%25127%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.25992970953511496&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251999_29a%25sect%25127%25section%25127%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.20351726079912802&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251973_65a%25sect%2595%25section%2595%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.20351726079912802&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251973_65a%25sect%2595%25section%2595%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.20351726079912802&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251973_65a%25sect%2595%25section%2595%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

18 January 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Employee Handbook 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

   fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the Council’s Employee Handbook and next steps of the handbook review. This includes 

the review and re-design of the Council’s Flexible Working Policy.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s Employee Handbook review.  

 

2. Approves the amended Flexible Working Policy.   

 

 

 

 

33

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Whilst the current handbook was produced by an external provider at a cost, the 

revised version and subsequent policies will be designed and published in-house 

and therefore will not have associated financial implications.  

 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Employment law forms the basis of many of our HR policy information and 

processes. These will continue to be aligned and any changes in employment 

laws will be reflected.  

 

Upcoming changes to employment laws relating to flexible working requests are 

reflected in the flexible working policy draft being shared today.  

 

  Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3   South Kesteven District Council will ensure it remains with fair policies and 

practices in place which enable a diverse range of people to work together 

effectively and ensures an inclusive workplace.  

 

 

 

34



Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4  Parts of the employee handbook outline our mental health and wellbeing support 

but as this has developed significantly since the handbook was written, this will be 

refreshed as part of the policy review.  

 

2.  Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Employment Committee requested an update on the employee handbook 

and any planned updates to the content.  

 

2.2 The employee handbook is a valuable communication resource for both 

employees and the organisation. It provides guidance and information relating to 

the council’s policies and procedures.  

 

2.3  Previously, the Council moved away from having documented HR policies and 

instead, commissioned an agency to provide the 55-page handbook which 

details guidance on a range of employment topics.  

 

2.4  The HR team regularly review the content and update where required.  

 

2.5  This handbook has been in place a few years and the feedback from employees 

is that this needs a complete refresh. Some are finding it difficult to find the 

content they are looking for as the document is 55 pages long and there is no 

search function for key words.  

 

2.6  Employees and line managers have raised a preference to have a shorter 

handbook which signposts policies and guidance documents on specific 

subjects. 

 

2.7   It is proposed that the next stage of the review moves to re-designing the   

handbook in a new format and designing HR policies.  

 

2.8  A policy and handbook refresh was therefore launched and the principles for the 

policy review are: 

- Focus on informal resolutions where applicable  

- Short, simple policies 

- A new user-friendly layout 

- Supporting guides and process flowcharts to provide further 

guidance 

- Signposting further support e.g., HR, our Employee Assistance 

Programme, related forms and documentation etc.  

- Alignment to the culture and values that we want to inculcate. 

 

 

 

35



3. Handbook Review 

 

3.1  The handbook refresh is underway and the shorter book provides links to policies 

which are being drafted, reviewed and updated.  

 

3.2  Alongside this and to ensure up-to-date information is provided, the current 

handbook has been updated with the following: 

 

Topic Summary of change 

Alcohol and drugs (page 3 – 
5) 

Page 3 - Addition of links to information on 
alcohol and drug driving limits. Additional 
wording to cover testing of new starters in 
safety critical roles.  
Page 4 – wording amended to include whole 
organisation in random testing 
Page 5 – additional information under section 
headed Positive test results for alcohol and 
illegal drugs – includes additional information 
on positive/non-negative 

Long Service Awards (Page 
54) 

Amend content to new long service awards 
policy.  
Add wider recognition policy. 

Leaver’s process Amend leavers fact sheet to reflect changes to 
process including: 

- Exit interviews being offered to all 
leavers and conducted by HR 

- Changes in the long service award 
process. 

Equalities - Armed Forces  Updated wording on guaranteed interview 
scheme and updated status to ‘gold’.  

 

4.  Flexible Working Policy 

 

4.1  The Flexible Working Policy has been drafted (please see appendix A).  A 

supporting ‘Flexible Working Flowchart’ is detailed in appendix B.  

 

4.2  The following changes have been made: 

 

Current New Policy Reason for change 

Employees can request 
flexible working from week 
26 of employment. 

All employees can request 
flexible working regardless of 
their length of service.    

 Upcoming legal change will 
make this a statutory 
requirement.  

36



One request can be made 
in a 12-month period. 

Two requests can be made in a 
12-month period.   

 Upcoming legal change will 
make this a statutory 
requirement.  

 Flexible working process 
timescales - 3 months 

Flexible working process to be 
concluded within 2 months.  

 Upcoming legal change will 
make this a statutory 
requirement. 

No informal resolutions Focus on informal resolutions 
for simple requests.  

Quicker, simpler and a better 
experience for colleagues.  

No flowchart.  Introduction of a process 
flowchart 

Helps individuals and managers 
follow the process in simple 
steps.  

Little focus on alternative 
options or trials. 

Focus on exploring other 
options if request cannot be 
accommodated.  

More likely to get a resolution 
that works for the employee 
and Council. 

 

5.  Next steps 

 

5.1  Continue reviewing policies and handbook.  

 

6.  Reasons for the Recommendations 

 

6.1 To resolve the difficulties employees are currently experiencing in locating the 

information they need by making the policies and guidance clear.  

 

6.2  The new Flexible Working Policy provides a clear process which aligns with 

upcoming legal changes. 

 

7.  Consultation 
 

7.1 Consultation will continue to include our Trade Union representatives and the 

People Panel.   

 

8.  Related Documents 

 
Current handbook (access via South Kesteven’s internal Intranet) - 02739RT_EMPLOYEE 

HANDBOOK 2022 (adobe.com)  

 

9.  Appendices 
 

8.1      Appendix A – Flexible Working Policy 

           Appendix B – Flexible Working Flowchart 

 

 

37

https://indd.adobe.com/view/435a19ed-bc86-4d52-a457-de5d24d25714
https://indd.adobe.com/view/435a19ed-bc86-4d52-a457-de5d24d25714


This page is intentionally left blank



  
Version: v0.1 Date: January 2023   Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Relevant forms and letters: 

• Flexible Working Request Form 
• Flexible Working Request 

Flowchart 
• Letter templates 
• Meeting guidance for managers 

 

Related policies: 

• Flexitime Policy 
• New Ways of Working Protocol 

Contents 

 

1.0 Policy Statement ..................................................................... 2 

2.0 Scope ...................................................................................... 2 

3.0 What is flexible working? ........................................................ 2 

4.0 Guiding principles ................................................................... 2 

5.0 Informal Flexible Working Requests ....................................... 3 

6.0       Formal Flexible Working Requests Process ............................. 3 

8.0       Right to Appeal ....................................................................... 4 

 

 

Flexible Working Policy 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance for managers and colleagues to explore 

options for flexible working and find mutually acceptable arrangements wherever 

possible. 

If you have any questions about this policy or require any further support, please contact the HR team by 

emailing hr@southkesteven.gov.uk  

For independent support, our Employee Assistant Support service offer a completely confidential helpline for 

employees. Call 0800 716 017 to receive support for mental health, legal signposting, practical help, manager 

coaching and much more. 

39

https://www./
mailto:hr@southkesteven.gov.uk


  
Version: v0.1 Date: January 2023   Page 2 of 4 

 

1.0 Policy Statement 
 
South Kesteven District Council understand that flexible working can be beneficial to both 
employees and the organisation. The Council therefore aims to support its employees to achieve a 
better balance between work and their other priorities such as caring responsibilities, leisure 
activities, further learning and other interests.  
 
SKDC is committed to considering, and where possible, agreeing flexible working arrangements, 
provided that the needs and objectives of both the organisation and the employee can be met.  

 
2.0 Scope  
 

This policy applies to all employees across all sites of South Kesteven Council. All employees have 
the legal right to request flexible working – not just parents and carers.  
 
Individuals have the opportunity to request flexible working from day one of employment. Flexible 

working opportunities are offered at all stages in a career, regardless of role, grade, or the reasons 

for wanting to work flexibly.  

 
Employees are entitled to submit two flexible working requests in a twelve-month period, although 
may be entitled to additional requests if they relate to statutory entitlement e.g. the Equality Act 
right to request reasonable adjustments.  
 

3.0 What is flexible working?  
 

Flexible working can be any type of working arrangement that gives some degree of flexibility on 

how long, where and when an employee works. Examples of this include part-time hours, term-

time working, compressed hours and job shares.  

 

4.0 Guiding principles 
 

• SKDC recognises the positive impact of flexible working arrangements to: 

- improve efficiency and productivity; 

- improve the balance between life and work; 

- create a positive and inclusive environment; 
 

• Individuals and their manager will work together to explore the flexible working options that 

are available and seek a practical arrangement which supports the individual as well 

maintaining safe, high quality, efficient services that are appropriately staffed.  

 

• Individuals and their manager are encouraged to collaborate to think creatively about flexible 

working solutions, and trial different flexible working options to identify what works best.  

 

• Flexibility involves compromise and mutual trust, with responsibility for identifying and 

maintaining a workable solution being shared by managers and staff. 

 

40



  
Version: v0.1 Date: January 2023   Page 3 of 4 

 

• All colleagues have the right to request flexible working, however, it may not be possible to 

agree to a particular request due to business need. Flexibility is dependent upon the needs of 

the department.  

 

• SKDC will ensure that decisions made in relation to flexible working requests, are made in 

accordance with the Equality Act 2010.  

 

5.0 Informal Flexible Working Requests 
 

Flexibility exists on working hours across SKDC and the Council wishes to support and encourage 

such an approach where possible. Some arrangements, such as changes to start and finish times, 

can often be agreed locally without the requirement for a formal flexible working request. The first 

step of any flexible working request is therefore to see if it is appropriate to progress informally 

through a discussion between a colleague and their line manager.  

 

If agreed, the manager should capture the outcome of the new working arrangements in writing 

and send a copy to HR. Some arrangements may require a variation to the employee’s contract 

and a pay change form may need to be submitted.  

 

Individuals still have the right to submit a formal application if they wish.  

 

6.0 Formal Flexible Working Requests Process 
 

Formal requests for flexible working can be made by completing the document ‘1. Flexible 

Working Application Form’ and submitting it to the line manager.  

 

The line manager should seek to arrange a meeting that will be held within 14 days of the 

manager receiving the request. This time limit may be reasonably extended with the agreement of 

both the employee and the line manager. By exception, it may be appropriate for another 

manager to hear the request rather than the line manager.  

 

At the meeting the employee may, if they wish, be accompanied by a colleague or trade union 

representative.  

 

Following the meeting, the employee will be informed in writing of the decision within 14 days. 

Again, this time limit may be reasonably extended with the agreement of both the employee and 

the line manager.  

 

The request may be granted in full as a permanent or temporary change, or refused. The manager 

may also propose a modified version of the request (i.e. even if the request cannot be 

accommodated, there may be other options that can be explored with the employee and 

exploring this is strongly encouraged). The request may also involve a trial period which would 

include a mechanism for review between the individual and their line manager after a specified 

amount of time. At the end the review period, if the arrangement isn’t working well, an individual 

may be moved back to their original working pattern. 

41



  
Version: v0.1 Date: January 2023   Page 4 of 4 

 

 

The manager will write to the individual to confirm the outcome of the request. If a variation of 

contract is required, HR will provide this.   

 

7.0 Considering Informal or Formal Flexible Working Requests 

 

Each request will be considered on a case-by-case basis. The manager will review the proposed 

flexible working arrangements, considering the benefits and any potential adverse effects. 

 

The manager will give reasons for the rejection of any request. Those reasons must be for one or 

more prescribed business reasons, which are: 

• The costs of allowing the request would be too high; 
• It wouldn’t be possible to reorganise work performed by the employee among other staff; 
• The employer can’t recruit other staff to cover additional work; 
• The quality of goods or services supplied by the employer would be affected; 
• Allowing the request would affect the employer’s ability to meet customer demand; 
• Business or employee performance would be affected; 
• There wouldn’t be enough work for the employee to do during the hours they have asked to 

work; or 
• There are planned changes to the business which wouldn’t work if the request was allowed 

 

8.0 Right to Appeal 

 

Individuals have the right to appeal a decision if their request is refused or is agreed in part. To do this, 

employees can lodge an appeal within 5 days of being notified of a decision to HR 

(hr@southkesteven.gov.uk). 

 

An appropriate Appeals Manager will be appointed, usually either the relevant Head of Service, 

Assistant Director or the Second Line Manager. The Appeals Manager will normally arrange a meeting 

which is held within 14 days from receipt of the appeal.  

 

The employee will then be informed of the outcome to their appeal within 14 days of the appeal 

meeting. These time limits may be extended with the agreement of both the employee and the 

Appeals Manager.  

 

This is the final part of the process and there are no further rights to appeal.  

 

 

 

 
 For further information about this policy, please contact the HR Team at hr@southkesteven.gov.uk.  

• This policy applies to all employees within South Kesteven District Council unless stated otherwise within the policy.  

• This policy does not form part of contracts of employment.  

• The Council reserves the right to amend this policy from time to time.  

42

mailto:hr@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:hr@southkesteven.gov.uk


Flexible Working Flowchart

Employee discusses their flexible working request with line manager. 
If it is a relatively simple request that can be accommodated, line manager 

can agree request at this informal stage and send document ‘4. Flexible 
Working request authorised outcome letter’. 

If it needs further discussion/exploration, move to formal stage 1. 

In
fo

rm
al

Fo
rm

al
 S

ta
ge

 1
Fo

rm
al

 S
ta

ge
 2

 (
A

p
p

ea
l)

Further discussion/exploration 
needed

Employee completes ‘1. Flexible Working Application Form’

Manager completes and sends ‘2. Invite to Flexible Working 
Meeting’

Manager holds meeting using ‘3. Flexible Working Stage 1 Meeting 
Guide’

Manager responds in writing using ‘4. Flexible working request authorised
outcome letter’ or ‘5. Flexible working request not authorised’ as a template. 

Employee can appeal decision by submitting ‘ 5. Flexible Working 
Appeal Form’ to HR who will appoint a manager.

1
 m

o
n

th
Appeal Manager completes and sends ‘6. Invite to Flexible Working 

Appeal’

Appeal Manager holds meeting using ‘7. Flexible Working Stage 2 
Meeting Guide’

Manager responds in writing using ‘8. Flexible Working appeal 
outcome letter’ as a template. 

Request authorised
Send copy of confirmation letter to HR

If applicable, HR will issue a variation of 
contract.

1
 m

o
n

th

Request cannot be authorised*
*Ensure you have explored and discussed any 

alternative options.

Send copy of confirmation letter to HR

Request 
authorised

Request 
authorised

Request not 
authorised

43



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Committee/Council 
 
 

Date 18 January 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Pulse Surveys – Wellbeing and Staff Socials 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt, HR Manager 

  fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report details the results of two recent pulse surveys. The first set out questions 

relating to colleague’s wellbeing and the second survey asked about staff socials.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

1. Employment Committee is asked to note the results of the two pulse 
surveys and comment accordingly on the findings.  

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

45

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Wellbeing activities are planned in line with the wellbeing budget which was 

allocated by Full Council for the 22/23 financial year.  

 

Richard Wyles Chief Finance Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 From an employment law perspective, the work on mental health and wellbeing 

are in line with the Council’s legal obligations to look after the health and welfare 

of our employees.  

 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.3 Wellbeing is the cornerstone of South Kesteven District Council and it is vital we 

have a good understanding from our people about how they are and what factors 

positively contribute to employee wellbeing. This underpins the Council’s 

organisational success and it is therefore important we regularly ask and build 

actions in response to the insights.  

 

2. Background to the wellbeing pulse survey  
 

2.1  At SKDC, we have a holistic approach to wellbeing which includes; mental health 

first aiders, an employee and members assistance programme, colleague 

networks and leading numerous wellbeing initiatives which recently have included: 

 

• White Ribbon domestic violence awareness involving a staff football game 

and pledge tree.  

• Various mental health awareness activities including Men’s Mental Health 

Week with a mental health workshop open to all colleagues.  

• Financial wellbeing support for Talk Money Week.  

 

 

 

46



2.3  A priority for us has also been initiating ways of bringing our people together 

more. This was a key action from our 2021 Engagement Survey and subsequent 

focus groups. Over the past year we have therefore focused on bring people 

together from across the Council through: 

• Wellbeing networks which support colleagues on topics that are important 

to them including our Menopause Café and Parents Forum.  

• Holding our first staff social since pre-pandemic. We did this by holding a 

#TeamSK Awards night.  

 

3. Wellbeing Survey Results Overview 
 

3.1 The Wellbeing Survey was cascaded to all staff in November 2022 and received 

85 responses. The full results are shown in the presentation in Appendix A. Some 

key highlights are as follows: 

 

• When asked to rate their mental wellbeing, 46% said good or very good. 

This has increased from 37% in 2021.  

• A further 41% rated their mental wellbeing as ‘okay’ meaning 87% of 

respondents answer ‘okay’ or higher.  

• 85% said they felt the Council currently provides enough support for their 

mental wellbeing which was a 25% increase on the 2021 score.  

• 95% said they would know where to go to get support for mental wellbeing 

issues and 91% said they are aware of our Employee Assistance 

Programme.  

• 25% said their state of wellbeing had been negatively affected by the 

current financial crisis and a further 20% said it had been somewhat 

affected.   

• 40% said they had made use of our wellbeing initiatives over the last year.  

• 71% felt the Council provides enough support for their physical wellbeing 

(an increase from 57% in 2021).  

 

3.2      Suggestions from the survey have been built into an action plan which includes: 

 

• Physical wellbeing month taking place this month (January 2023) including a team 

steps challenge and working with Leisure SK to give staff more access to 

activities. The steps challenge is already a big success with 20 teams of 6 taking 

part.   

• Standing desks at the new office.  

• More networks opportunities for colleagues to come together on topics of interest. 

• Scheduled workshops and seminars to raise awareness of wellbeing topics. 

• Mental health focus at the Depot for the waste team, bringing in the expertise of a 

local charity; Dom Brister from Don’t Lose Hope.  

 

 

 

47



4. Background to the Staff Socials Feedback Survey  
 

4.1 On 1st December 2022, we held a #TeamSK Awards and Staff Celebration 

evening in the Guildhall. More than 100 colleagues attended the event which 

included the presentation of employee awards for the categories outlined below, 

followed by a buffet and disco.  

 

4.2  The awards presented were: 

 

Award Shortlist Winner 

Outstanding Team 
of the Year 
 

Housing 
Homes for Ukraine 
Customer Services 
London Bridge 
People Panel 
Environmental Health Commercial 
Team 

Homes for Ukraine 
 

Outstanding 
Achievement 
 

Andre Ford Hamilton (Housing) 
Debbie Mewes (Legal) 
Rachel Cartwright (Communications) 
Debbie Nicholls (Communications) 
Kirsten Janey (Revenues) 
Laura Short (Arts) 

Debbie Nicholls 
(Communications) 
 

Making a Difference 
in our Community 
 

Kati Conway (Neighbourhoods) 
Dave Munnary (Street Cleansing) 
Rachael Bradley (Housing) 
Peter Harrison (Public Protection) 
Pauline Abbess (Change4Lincs) 
Stella Darker (Housing Support) 

Rachael Bradley 
(Housing) 
 

Pillar of Support 
 

Christian Polzin (Environmental Health_ 
Alice Atkins (Corporate Projects) 
Drew Palmer (Housing) 
Amber Wakling (Corporate Projects) 
Kevin Taylor (CCTV) 
Carolyn Baker (Corporate Property 
Services) 

Amber Wakling 
(Corporate Projects) 
 

Rising Star 
 

Ayeisha Kirkham (Public Protection) 
Joshua Mann (Housing Options) 
Carrie Polzin (Licencing) 
Dean Allan (Environmental Health) 
Mieke Alcock (HR) 
Tanya Scofield (Fleet Services) 

Ayeisha Kirkham 
(Public Protection) 
 

Deputy Chief 
Executive award 
 

Not applicable Sarah Downs 

Director’s award – 
Growth and Culture 
 

Not applicable Eli Barrett 

48



Director’s award – 
Finance 
 

Not applicable Debbie Gorely 

Director’s award - 
Housing 
 

Not applicable Katie Askew 

Chief Executive’s 
award 
 

Not applicable Phil Swinton 
Fran Beckitt 

 

5. Staff Socials Feedback Survey Overview 
 

5.1 The Staff Socials Survey was cascaded to all staff in December 2022.There were 

two sets of questions; one for those who attended the event on 1st December and 

another set of questions for those that did not attend. 

 

5.2  142 colleagues completed the survey. 65 of these went to the event and gave 

feedback on evening and 77 responded who did not attend. The latter gave 

feedback on their reasons for not attending and any views on future social events 

they may like to be involved in.  

 

5.3  The full results of this survey are shown in Appendix B. Some of the key highlights 

are as follows: 

 

 Of the 62 colleagues who provided feedback having attended the event: 

• When asked to rate the evening out of 5, 97% rated it either 4 or 5.  

• 98% said they would be likely/very likely to attend a future social event. 

• Feedback about the awards, recognition, room décor, social opportunity 

and atmosphere were overwhelmingly positive.  

• Suggestions for improving the event included a bigger venue and having it 

on a Friday night. 

 

Of the 77 colleagues who responded to the survey having not attended the event 

on 1st December, their feedback included: 

 

• The main reason for not attending was due to other commitments on the 

date of the event. Other reasons included childcare, illness and not living 

close by.  

• 66% would be likely/very likely to attend a future social event.  

 

Suggestions from all the survey responses on what they would like to see for 

future events included a BBQ, bowling, quiz night, sport activities and team 

challenges. These are being review and built into a plan for 2023.  

 

 

 

49



6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The results have been shared with our Trade Union Representatives and the 

Senior Leadership Team. A communication to all staff is to be cascaded.  

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A – Wellbeing Survey results Nov 2022 

 Appendix B -  Staff Socials Survey results 

 

 

 

 

 

50



SKDC Health and 

Wellbeing Survey

November 2022

85 responses

51



How would you rate your mental 

wellbeing right now?

Has your state of  wellbeing been 

negatively affected by the current 

financial crisis?

Would you know where to go to 

get support for any mental 

wellbeing issues?

2022 – 95% 
2021 - 82 %

Yes

2022 – 5%
2021 - 18 %

No

Very good Good Okay

Poor Very poor

2022 – 13%
2021 - 9%

2022 – 33%
2021 - 28%

2022 – 41%
2021 - 38%

2022 – 12%
2021 - 21%

2022 – 1%
2021 - 4%

55% 25%20%

No Somewhat Yes

“Partially, it is a worry 

having to try and find extra 

money for utilities and the 

cost of food as prices rise”

“I believe everyone 

must have some 

concerns, no matter 

what pay grade they sit 

in”

“Slight worries need 

more hours to pay 

the bills”

52



Are you aware of  our Employee 

Assistance Programme?

Yes No

91% 9%

Have you made use of  any of  our 

wellbeing initiatives or events over the 

last year?

Do you think the Council currently provides 

enough support for your mental wellbeing?

Do you think the Council currently provides 

enough support for your physical wellbeing?

60%

NoYes

40%

53



Are you aware of  our Employee 

Assistance Programme?

Yes No

91% 9%

Have you made use of  any of  our 

wellbeing initiatives or events over the 

last year?

Do you think the Council currently provides 

enough support for your mental wellbeing?

Do you think the Council currently provides 

enough support for your physical wellbeing?

60%

NoYes

40%

54



Actions being built into the 2023 Wellbeing Plan

40% of respondents said they had made use of the Council’s wellbeing initiatives over the last year. We aim to increase this through:
• Building on our employee networks – providing support in setting up and promoting new networks in line with colleague’s interests
• Widening wellbeing initiatives to Council locations across South Kesteven. 
• Having a focus on Mental Health for the Waste Team which will be designed for convenient times

“Desk jobs are a killer and there needs to be more focus on standing and physical activity.” 71% of respondents said the Council currently provides enough 
support for their physical wellbeing. We aim to increase this through:
• January ‘Physical Wellbeing Month’ including a team steps challenge. 
• Working with LeisureSK to offer increased physical wellbeing opportunities to staff. 
• Standing desks being made available in the new office. 

A few suggestions from the survey included continuing events/workshops/seminars -“Having scheduled events / seminars helps to prioritise people's mental 
and physical wellbeing. It helps to force people to take time out of their day to address these matters”. The action is therefore:
• Scheduled workshops and seminars to raise awareness of wellbeing topics to take place regularly in 2023. 

45% feel their state of wellbeing has been negatively affected by the current financial crisis, or has been somewhat negatively affected. We will therefore:
• Continue cost of living support following Talk Money week signposting and communications. 
• Wellbeing event will provide colleagues with an opportunity to speak to key organisations that offer local support. 

We will take more feedback from colleagues about Wellbeing in January’s full employee survey which will enable us to:
• Deep dive into the wellbeing of different teams and demographics
• Create a Wellbeing Index which will provide a comparable score for the organization and individual teams. 
• Each team action plan will be designed to include wellbeing related actions. 

55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overall, how would you rate Thursday’s event out of 5?

#TeamSK Awards and Staff 
Celebration

142 
completed 
the survey

65 who went to the event
And 77 who didn’t attend

If we were to plan another #TeamSK social in around 6 month’s time, would 
you be likely to attend?

1%

Over 100 colleagues attended the #TeamSK Awards and Staff Celebration on 1st December. 
Of these 65 completed the survey and gave the following feedback:

57



“What did you like about the event” summary?

The decor The atmosphere

• Nicely decorated room x16
• The #TeamSK lights x5
• Had a good feel and visual impact x2

• The buzz/atmosphere/vibe x10
• The music/DJ x8
• The dancing
• The lighting
• Positive and fun
• The fact we were able to turn it into 

a karaoke was much appreciated! 

Social 

• Seeing people from other teams x12
• A real ‘togetherness’/team spirit x4
• I liked it that all departments were 

celebrated
• Well set out to make it sociable

Recognition 

• Lovely feeling to get an award x2
• Awards and categories were good x2
• Seeing people being recognised x7
• Celebrating everyone’s hard work 

and hearing what has been achieved 
this year x6

• The sincerity in which senior 
management presented

• Good that the awards didn’t get 
dragged out. 

• Recognition awarded mainly by 
peers x2

• Quality of the awards, cards and 
certificates was fantastic

• Liked incorporating long service

Other 

• Buffet food x9
• Prosecco on tables x3
• Seeing people having a good time x4
• The organization x2
• Everything! X5
• Well structured/flowed 

well/slick/professional x8
• Brilliant event, thoroughly enjoyed it
• Informal/relaxed x2

58



Staff were truly and honestly celebrated for their contributions to SK and 
everyone was made to feel very special and valued.  I think the whole event 

was a tribute to #TeamSK.

I thought the decorations 
were fantastic and set an 
exciting atmosphere. The 
fact these events are rare 

gave the occasion and 
sense of hype which was 

enjoyable with the build up 
to the night. 

I liked that some tables 
were mixed with different 

teams. 

Everything - the atmosphere was 
great and everyone seemed to have a 

good time.  Obviously getting an 
award was an unexpected bonus, but 
it was lovely feeling appreciated and 

appreciating others.  Great way to 
meet people who are normally just 
names on emails.  Great disco and 

food too!

It was fantastic to see everyone enjoying themselves and celebrating the 
amazing work that goes on at SK.  

Nicely decorated room, good entertainment, good food and good atmosphere. 

59



How could the event be improved?

• Look at a bigger venue if more want to attend next time. (x11) 
• A quiz or fun games (x5)
• Have the event on a Friday instead of Thursday. (x7)
• Somewhere to sit with quieter music to chat. (x2)
• Live music.
• Transport for those from elsewhere in the District.
• Attendance from more teams. (x3)
• Different food options (x7)
• Nominations that have to be for outside own team
• It couldn’t be improved! (x14) 

Do you have any suggestions for future SKDC socials/events? 

• Summer BBQ (x11) – invite families (x3) and/or combine with a sports day  
• A summer celebration
• Summer ball
• Wellbeing days including sports activities (x2)
• An afternoon tea event
• Bowling (x7)
• Board games night (x2)
• Scavenger hunt in teams around Grantham – use local businesses and maybe the 

HelloSK App (x2)
• Live music event
• Quiz night (x2) 
• Maybe organise trips e.g. Xtreme Scream
• Low cost socials are always good.
• Team challenge – a mix of different events with prizes at the end. 
• Utilisation of our corporate assets - meres, arts centres, parks.  Be good to book out 

the theatre - say at the Guildhall - for a show. 

Feedback from 65 colleagues who attended the event:

60



Feedback from colleagues who did not 
attend the event (n77)

What was the reason you did not attend the #TeamSK Awards or Staff Party on 1st

December?

• Working (x2)
• Other commitments including annual leave (x30)
• It was on a Thursday night (x5)
• New starter and joined after ticket sales
• Don’t live close enough (x9)
• Illness (x8)
• I don’t know many people/team mates not attending (x3)
• Childcare/family commitments (x9)
• Not interested in the type of event
• Forgot

If we were to plan another #TeamSK social in around 6 month’s time, would 
you be likely to attend?

Do you have any suggestions for future SKDC socials/events? 

• Hold on a Friday (x5)
• Event during work hours
• BBQ (x8)
• Bowling (x4)
• Include partners
• Quiz night (x2)
• Fundraising and auction events on behalf of local charities
• Karaoke party
• Ghost walk
• Hold an event in Bourne or Stamford
• No response (x49)

61



This page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Anna Kelly 
 

Subject Purpose Outcome sought 

 

18 January 2023 

Designation of Interim 
Monitoring Officer 

To provide the Committee with an opportunity to 
consider the designation of the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer. 

For the Employment Committee to consider. 

Pay Policy Statement  Annual report to Employment Committee, to form part of 
the Budget setting process. 

To consider and recommend to full Council for 
approval. 

Employee Handbook Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in 
line with current legislation and changes 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 

The Work of the People Panel 
and staff survey 

An update on the work of the People Panel and findings 
of the staff survey. 

For the Employment Committee to note. 

 

8 March 2023 

Chief Executive Appraisal Annual Appraisal 
 

The Committee to note the Chief Executives 
Annual Appraisal. 

Workforce Equality and 
Gender Pay Gap Report 

Update to Employment Committee Annually. For consideration by the Employment 
Committee. 

 

Items to be allocated 

63

A
genda Item

 9



None  

 

64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 Designation of Interim Monitoring Officer
	6 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix A - Pay Policy

	7 Employee Handbook
	Appendix A - Flexible Working Policy
	Appendix B - Flexible Working Flowchart
	Slide 1


	8 Pulse Surveys - Wellbeing and Staff Socials
	Appendix A - Wellbeing Survey Results Nov 2022
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5

	Appendix B - Staff Socials Survey
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5


	9 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

